
EXHIBIT A 
 

PALM BEACH COUNTY 
LAND DEVELOPMENT REGULATION ADVISORY BOARD (LDRAB) 

ELECTRIC VEHICLE CHARGING STATIONS (EVCSs) SUBCOMMITTEE 
(Updated 12/03/20) 

 
Minutes of November 19, 2020 EVCSs Subcommittee Meeting 

 

U:\Zoning\CODEREV\Research - Central\Art. 4 - Supplemental Uses\Electric Vehicle Charging Stations EVCS\2020\Meetings\12-10-
20\Minutes\Exh. A - Minutes of November 19, 2020 EVCSs Subcommittee Meeting.docx 

LDRAB Subcommittee Meeting December 10, 2020 Page i 

On Thursday, November 19, 2020, the Palm Beach County Land Development Regulation Advisory Board 
(LDRAB) Electric Vehicle Charging Stations (EVCSs) Subcommittee, met in the Medium Hearing Room (VC-
1W-60), at 2300 North Jog Road, West Palm Beach, Florida and via Cisco Webex Events communications 
media technology (CMT). 
 
A. CALL TO ORDER 

1. Roll Call 
Mr. Jeff Gagnon, Code Revision Principal Site Planner, called the meeting to order at 1:05 p.m. Mr. 
Alexander Biray, Site Planner I, called the roll. 

 
Members Present: 6 Members Absent: 0 
Drew Martin (District 2, Commissioner Weiss)  
Dr. Lori Vinikoor (District 5, Commissioner Sachs) County Staff Present: 10 
Terrence Bailey (Florida Engineering Society)* Jon MacGillis, Zoning Director* 
Jaime M. Plana (American Institute of Architects)* Wendy N. Hernández, Deputy Zoning Director 
Frank Gulisano (Realtors Association of the Palm 
Beaches)* 

Jeff Gagnon, Principal Site Planner 

Abraham Wien (Alternate At-Large #2)* Jerome Ottey, Site Planner II 
 Alexander Biray, Site Planner I 
Interested Parties: 6 Scott A. Stone, Assistant County Attorney I* 
Mike Gibaldi (Brickell Energy)* Bryan Davis, Principal Planner* 
Emily O'Mahoney (2GHO & Associates, Inc.)* Carolina Valera, Senior Planner* 
Jeff Rothe (ChargePoint)* Jake Leech, Environmental Analyst* 
Evan Rosenblatt (Pebb Enterprises)* Lorinda J. Goldsmith, Senior Network 

Administrator* 
Ron Semp (PlugIn Stations Online)*  
Linda Smithe (Destination Loop)  
* Present via Webex Events. 

 
Motion to approve the attendance of Mr. Bailey, Mr. Plana, Mr. Gulisano, and Mr. Wein via CMT based 
on extraordinary circumstances of the coronavirus pandemic justifying the Board members’ absence, 
by Dr. Vinikoor, seconded by Mr. Martin. The Motion passed unanimous (2-0). 

 
2. Introduction – Subcommittee Members, Staff, and Interested Parties 

Mr. Gagnon provided an overview of the Subcommittee scope and Mr. Biray introduced Staff and 
Interested Parties present in person and via CMT. 

 
Mr. Stone and Mr. MacGillis clarified the LDRAB Rules of Procedure for quorum. 

 
3. Elections – Chair and Vice-Chair 

Mr. Gagnon opened the floor to nominations for Chair and Vice-Chair. Mr. Martin nominated Dr. 
Vinikoor for Chair and himself as Vice-Chair, seconded by Mr. Gulisano. Dr. Vinikoor accepted. The 
Motion passed unanimous (6-0). 

 
4. Additions, Substitutions, and Deletions to Agenda 

Mr. Gagnon noted there were no additions, substitutions, and deletions to the Agenda. 
 

5. Motion to Adopt Agenda 
Motion to adopt the Agenda, by Mr. Martin, seconded by Mr. Gulisano. The Motion passed unanimous 
(6-0). 

 
B. BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY 

1. Exhibit A – ULDC Electric Vehicle Charging Station 
Mr. Gagnon and Ms. Hernández explained the Exhibit is excerpts of existing language related to EVs 
by Article in the Unified Land Development Code (ULDC), which the Subcommittee will use as a 
foundation in reviewing the proposed amendment to fulfill the Mission Statement and Goals. Article 4 
enumerates EVCSs for charging of vehicles for a fee, while Article 6 enumerates Electric Vehicle 
Charging Parking Spaces (EVCPS) for charging vehicles without a fee. 

 
Dr. Vinikoor suggested that EVCPS in Article 6 be defined as an acronym in Article 1. Mr. Martin asked 
if the EVs enumerated in the Article 4 definition of EVCS use the same charging equipment, specifically 
fuel cell. Dr. Vinikoor noted a typo in the definition, where a “be” should be in included in “but not limited 
to.” Mr. Wien noted chargers have different connectors. Mr. Leech explained Staff findings, and will 
provide the Board a memorandum on the different types of charging and connections. He also 
responded to Mr. Martin’s question on fuel cells, which are not applicable to State law as hydrogen 
vehicles.  



EXHIBIT A 
 

PALM BEACH COUNTY 
LAND DEVELOPMENT REGULATION ADVISORY BOARD (LDRAB) 

ELECTRIC VEHICLE CHARGING STATIONS (EVCSs) SUBCOMMITTEE 
(Updated 12/03/20) 

 
Minutes of November 19, 2020 EVCSs Subcommittee Meeting 

 

U:\Zoning\CODEREV\Research - Central\Art. 4 - Supplemental Uses\Electric Vehicle Charging Stations EVCS\2020\Meetings\12-10-
20\Minutes\Exh. A - Minutes of November 19, 2020 EVCSs Subcommittee Meeting.docx 

LDRAB Subcommittee Meeting December 10, 2020 Page ii 

C. GOALS AND OBJECTIVES 
1. Mission Statement and Objectives 

Ms. Hernández explained per Board of County Commissioners direction, Staff will requiring EVCS 
infrastructure for specific uses with specific degrees of infrastructure, including but not limited to new 
Multifamily, Retail Gas and Fuel Sales, Business or Professional Office, and Retail Sales development. 
She further noted existing development of such uses would be subject to these requirements based 
upon calculated improvement value thresholds. 

 
Mr. Martin suggested EVCS Infrastructure for Retail Gas and Fuel Sales not be at gasoline pumps. 
Ms. Hernández responded that Staff has taken the location of spaces into consideration, and building 
and fire codes mandate distance requirements. 

 
D. ITEMS FOR NEXT MEETING 

1. Discussion Items 
Dr. Vinikoor opened the floor to comments by Interested Parties. 

 
Linda Smithe noted she worked on the design of the building where the meeting is held, and regretted 
not including a conduit in the parking areas for chargers based on a survey conducted by the Office of 
Resilience (OOR) of County Staff, where a quarter are interested in purchasing an EV, as well as 
future projections by the State. She also noted Retail Sales may use EVCPSs as a lure to attract 
shoppers. She asked that Hotel or Motel, and Government Services, duration of charging as 
“opportunistic” versus long-term, and equitability be taken into consideration. 

 
Dr. Vinikoor suggested Parks and Recreation facilities also be taken into consideration. Mr. Martin 
responded they may not have the electricity, but agreed on Hotel or Motel. 

 
Mr. Gibaldi responded to Mr. Smithe, disagreeing that the OOR survey means a quarter of the parking 
spaces should be for EVs, because chargers use software to allow rotation and warrants less capital 
expenditures. 

 
Mr. Plana noted the importance of time in determining EVCS Infrastructure, potential conflict with fire 
and building codes, and electrical capacity as it relates to costs. He also noted Retail Gas and Fuel 
Sales typically place EV spaces in the back of properties. 

 
Mr. Martin asked if anything will be added to the Code to allow the flexible changing of space 
designations as trends change. Ms. Hernández responded it may be based on percentages, but noted 
smaller uses would be most affected. Mr. Martin also asked if EVs spaces need to be closer to 
buildings to get a better connection. Mr. Plana responded it would be irrelevant if using direct current. 
Mr. Wien added that only cost from greater distance would be the trenching of the wires. Mr. Gibaldi 
noted alternating current for Level 2 charging has distance limitations, but can be mitigated by upsizing. 
He further noted Gold LEED certification mitigates costs. 

 
Dr. Vinikoor asked about EV spaces if somebody is handicapped. Ms. Hernández responded that from 
consultation with the Building Division, EV spaces may all be one size and meet ADA requirements. 
Dr. Vinikoor noted handicapped spaces are generally located the closest to buildings. 

 
2. Establish Meeting Schedule 

Motion to accept a meeting schedule of Thursday, December 10, 2020, Wednesday, January 6, 2021, 
and Thursday, February 4, 2021, all at 1:00 p.m., by Mr. Martin, seconded by Mr. Gulisano. The Motion 
passed unanimous (6-0). 

 
E. ADJOURN 

Motion to adjourn, by Mr. Martin, seconded by Mr. Gulisano. The Motion passed unanimous (6-0). 
 

The LDRAB EVCSs Subcommittee adjourned at 1:56 p.m. 
 

Recordings of all LDRAB meetings are kept on file in the Palm Beach County Zoning/Code Revision office 
and can be requested by contacting the Code Revision Section at (561) 233-5243. 


